
United Nations miRD COMMimE, 546th 
GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
NINTH SESSION 
Offi{;ial Records • 

MEETING 

ltlonday, 4 October 1954, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 27 : 

Report of the United Nations High Commissioner for 
Refugees (co ,ttinued).... ...... ... ............ .. . .. .. 13 

Chairman.: 1\lr. Jii-i NOSEK (Czechoelovakia) . 

AGE1'11>A ITEM 27 

Report of the Uniaed Nations High Commissioner 
for Refugecti (A/2648 and Add.2, A/ 2686, cha~ 

ler IV, 8ection V) (continued) 

G ENERAL DEBATE (co ntinued ) 

1. Mr. FARQUHAR (Iran) congratulated the 
United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees on his 
report ( A/ 2648 and Add.2) a nd his statement (54 5th 
meeting ) , which gave such a dear picture of the plight 
of the refugees. H is delegation's impression on other 
occasions when the High Commissioner had made his 
report to the General Assembly had always been that 
too little had been done and that insufficient support 
had been provided. 

2. The report clearly showed the efforts made to solve 
certain problems and the progress achieved. The most 
interesting part of the report was the section on the 
future programme. It was good that the H igh Com
missioner had now submitted an over-all plan for a 
definite solution of the problem. In the preceding three 
years, he and his staff had been able to gauge the 
extent of their task and to realize that the numbers of 
refugees involved were much higher than might be 
assumed from the last reports of the International 
Refugee Organization. I n order to deal immediately 
with the most urgent tasks, the High Commissioner 
had set up his Refugee E mergency Fund for the most 
needy cases and had studied the position of the refugees 
in various countries of residence in detail T he Ford 
F oundation's grant of $2,900,000 had made it possible 
to institute certain economic and social pilot projects 
in some of t he countries. 

3. I t was surprising to hear references to the local 
character of the problem. As the High Commissioner 
and the Secretary -General had statt~d before the T hird 
Committee, the refugee question was an international 
responsibility. T he United Nations had acknowledged 
that fact by setting up the H igh Commissioner's Office 
and by entrusting first the U nited Nations Relief and 
R ehabilitation Administration and then IRO with 
refugee work immediately after the Second \Vorld War . 
Moreover, two United Nations agencies, the United 
Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refu-

New York 

gees in the Near East and the United Nations Korean 
Reconstructi on Agency were dealing with the problems 
of Palestine and Korean refugees respectively. Before 
the Second World W ar also, the League of Nations had 
taken an active part in refugee work and had set up 
various bodies for that purpose. Thus, the international 
community had always been directly concerned with 
refugees and had never shirked its responsibility for 
alleviating their tragic plight. The international charac
ter of the question was further confirmed by article 1 
of the Statute of the High Commissioner's Office (Gen
neral Assembly resolution 428 (V), annex). 

4. The ove rriding a rgument for international respon
sibility was, however, that of human solidarity. When 
countries were obliged to r eceive r efugees, owing to 
their geog raphical pos.i tion, it was the humanitarian 
duty of other countries to help them to solve their 
problems. The High Commissioner had made it clear 
that many countries of first asylum had given sub
stantial assistance to refugees, but that they were un
able to find a satisfactory solut ion without international 
assistance. I nternational solidarity therefore made it 
incumbent on countries which were so p laced geo
graphically as to pr event refugees crossing their 
bor ders, to help the countries of residence. The High 
Commissioner was appealing for assistance in imple
menting a plan for the solution of the problem. If that 
appeal met with no response, certain countries of first 
asylum might be obliged, however reluctantly, to re
consider their policies. The Committee, which always 
had humanitarian considerations at heart, would surely 
do its utmost to enable the H igh Commissioner to 
carry out his plans. 

5. Another vital problem calling for rapid action was 
that of emergency assistance for the most needy cases, 
the most tragic group among the refugees. The High 
Commissione r had also appealed on behalf of persons 
who were d ifficult to place owing to sickness or ad
vanced age, and the countries which could help would 
certainly not ignore that appeal. 

6 . During t he war, the Iranian Government had re
ceived thousands of refugees and, with the help of its 
allies and of international agencies, had cared for them 
until they could be r esettled in other countries. 'When 
the High Commissioner had visited Iran at the begin
ning of the year, the I ranian Government had p rom
ised him every assistance in solving the problem of the 
refugees remaining there. A home for aged refugees 
had been set up with help from the Refugee E mer
gency F und and plans had been made to place refugee 
technicians and doctors in Iran, in order to improYe 
the posit ion of other refugees there. 

7. His delegation would support the High Commis· 
sioner in all his efforts to fmd a oo\ut\on ior the l'rol,. 
lem, both in Iran and in other countries, and would 
therefore vote for any action which might enable hin1 
to carry out his plans. 

13 A/ C.3/ SR.546 



l t. Geaeral AnemMy-Nia th Sea~ion-Third Committ~ 

8. Mrs. HARMAN (Israel) congratulated the High 
Commissioner on his statement, which bore witness to 
his energy, his resourcefulness and his devotion to his 
task. He had brought hope and new dignity where 
despair had prevailed and self-respe•:t had been lost 
through hardship, and had approached his mission with 
the sole object of eliminating human :nisery and help
ing the refugees to lead a free and in( ependent life. 

9. The High Commissioner had concl uded that the 
swiftest results would be obtained by facilitating inte
gration of the refugees in the areas where they were 
resident. A ll the possibilities had been thoroughly in
vestigated and close co-operation was maintained with 
the voluntary agencies concerned. It was to be pre
sumed that no opJXJrtunities for emigration and re
settlement would be neglected, but it seemed obvious 
that the majority would he most speedily and effectively 
helped by a practical programme of iategration. 

10. T he first need was to protect t l:e refugees' legal 
position. The Israel Government had :;igned and rati
fied the Convention relating to the Status of Refugees 
(A/Conf.Z/108) and had signed the Convention on the 
Stat us of Stateless Persons ( E / Conf.17/ 5) . 

11. The subscriptions to the Reh1gee E mergency 
Fund had not provided the High Commissioner with 
the minimum required for the most needy cases and 
he was also r equesting $12 million by 1958 to enable 
him to provide a ~nnanent solution. He had submitted 
a constructive programme for vocational training, hous
ing and other facilities. The sum of seven or eight 
dollars per refugee per year over a period of five years 
seemed to be a very modest but neces,;ary supplement, 
which would stimulate initiative and accelerate prac
tical measures for integration . From the ex perience of 
the Israel Government, which had undertaken to inte
grate some 19,000 refugees previously under the High 
Commissioner's mandate, the per capita e.'(penditure 
required to ensure stability and minimu111 conditions 
for a satisfactory l ivelihood would ine,· itably be larger. 
T hat commitment and the settlement in the past six 
years of some 750,000 immigrants, mostly indigent per
sons and refugees under the terms of the Convention 
relating to the Status of Refugees, prevented the Israel 
Government from making a further financial contri
bution at that stage. 
12. There was an objective justification for the fact 
that the cost of settling a refugee in his country o f 
residence was greater than the help <nvisagcd in the 
High Commissioner's proposals, since, in helping such 
a refugee, the country concerned wa.; not only per
forming a great humanitarian service but was acquiring 
a most valuable asset in the shape of a hard-working, 
self-supporting citizen. Nevertheless, it would not be 
fai r to place the whole burden on the countries of 
absorption, because the responsibility was international. 
The I srael delegation would therefore :ontinue to give 
the High Commissioner's plans its fuJest support. It 
was to be hoped that the Negotiating Committee fo r 
Extra-Budgetary Funds would reinforce his appe<tl for 
lllc Refugee E mergency Fund. T he f•Jnd for perma
nent solutions would enable Governments, volunt~try 
agencies and individuals to give tangible expression to 
their acknowledgment of a serious intt!r national prob
lel'll. 
13. Her delegation was grateful to the staff of the 
H igh Commissioner's Office for their devotion to the 
tas;k of easing the Jot of those who had been buffeted 
a nd in jured in the:: interplay of complex: world forces . 

14. Mrs. T SALDARIS (Greece) underlined the hu
manitarian aspect of the refugee problem and the ur
gency of the need to implement the five-year programme 
proposed by the High Commissioner. She summarized 
the report and concluded that all aspects of the prol>
lem had been d early set out: the humanitarian aspect, 
which was of undeniable urgency, the aspect o! the 
execution of a five-yea r plan with proposals for penna
nent solutions and the budget estimates and suggestions 
relating thereto. 

15. The High Commissioner had examined in detail 
the question of financ ing the programme, and several 
solutions h ad been considered and suggested by the 
Advisory Committee on Refugees, which had concluded 
that the best method would IJc for the General Assembly 
to authorize the Negotiating Committee for E xtra
B udgetary Funds to open negotiations with the Gov
ernments for contributions to the U nited Nations Refu
gee Emergency Fund. T hat suggestion had been adopted 
by the Economic and Social Council in resolution 549 
(XVIII). 

16. During the debate in the Economic and Social 
Council, some delegations had stated that they were 
unable to accept such a commitment on behalf of their 
governments and others that the host countries should 
be entirely r esponsible for the refugees on their soil. 
But note should be taken of the High Commissioner's 
opinion, ex pressed in paragraph 227 of his report (A/ 
2648), that none of the countries where there were 
large numbers of refugees was in a position to take 
the action n ecessary for a rapid solution of the problem. 

17. Greece was aware of the magnitude of the prob
lem. It was currently giving asylum to about 15,000 
refugees; the Government had made a great effort 
towards giving them assistance to meet their most ele
mentary needs. Some permanent housing had been 
built by the Government, but in view of the financial 
s ituation a·nd the long trials to which the country had 
been subjected, aggravated by the earthquakes in the 
Ionian Islands and Thessaly, it could not assume the 
whole burden of that expenditure alone. Sincere thanks 
were due to the High Commissioner, who had visited 
Greece to study the situation and consider possible 
remedies. 

18. She would like to draw the Committee's attention 
to the six: constructive sample projects (A/ 2648/ Add. 
2). She had noted with special interest the importance 
given to the moral and educational aspects of lhc 
problem. Three projects concerned Romania n refugees 
of Gr eek ethnic origin and had been accepted in prin
ciple by the Greek Government, which had agreed to 
ex empt them from stamp d ues, official fees and the like. 

19: In honour of \Vorld Children's Day, which was 
bemg observed on 4 October, she wished to mention 
the refugee children's centre in Corfu, which had been 
established with a donation of $8,00Cl from the F ord 
F oundation and with the co-operation of the Interna
tional Uni on for Child W elfare a nd the Greek Child 
Welfare Society, which had undertaken the feeding 
of the children there, all of whom wer e under scho~Ji 
age. 

20. The G reek delegation had been deeply apprecia
tive of the fact that the P resident of the Gener al As
sembly had attended the Committee's 545th meeting. 
It had also listened with sati~faction to the statement 
by the Se~retary-General, who had indicated the im
portance he would attach to an effort by the 'United 



546th •eetia«-4 October 1954 11 

Nations in the direction or a long-term programme for 
refugees. 
21. She concluded by paying a tribute to the Govern
ments for their contributions and donations, to the 
generosity of the Ford Foundation and to the valuahle 
collaboration of the organizations she had mentioned. 
22. Her delegation wished lO support the execution 
of the H igh Commissioner's programme. 

23. )llr. MONTERO 13 USTAMANTE (Uruguay ) 
said that his country had always supponed all en
deavours to a lleviate the lot of refugees and would 
continue to do so. It had thoroughly considered the 
financial aspect of the question and would in due course 
do what it could to assist the H igh Conunissioner. 
Countries which had remained relatively unharmed by 
the wars and the succeeding ideological conflicts that 
had given rise to the refugee problem had an <:Yen 
greater moral duty than others to relieve the· re(ugees' 
:-.ufferings. It was to he hoped that the Power~ with 
the largest rcsonrces would display their customary 
generosity. The United Nations as a whole was bound 
to concern itself deeply with a problem that we.:; at 
once moral, humanitarian and social. 

24. ~dr. 131\ROOUY (Saudi Arabia ) obs~::rved that 
the existence of refugees was only one symptom of the 
world's l!ickness, and the High Commissioner, com
lllendable as his work had been, could not be expected 
to produce a panacea. He dealt mainly with the Euro
J.>Can refugees, who had previously been protected l:~· 
1 RO, but his On'ice might eventually become the hasis 
for a universal organization that would deal with a 
problem which had become only too familiar in lJn.ited 
)lations discussions. 
25. The principle of universality should be borne in 
mind. The expression "the free world" had been u.sed 
at the 545th meeting ; it should not have been. ;\{any 
parts of the so-called free world were in fact not free, 
but unde1· colonial administration. Any reference to the 
many refugees in those territories was always depn:
catcd as an infringement of domestic jurisdiction. But 
that argument could not be invoked with respect to a 
humanitar ian matter, and certain ly not in favour oi 
negk-cling the fate of thousands whose only guilt had 
been to revolt against an alien yoke. 
2o. The refugees under the jurisdicticm of IRO and, 
subsequently, of the lligh Commissioner had fled from 
war or civil war; their problem might eventually b(· 
soh·ccl. There was, however, a growing category o· 
peacetime refugees who constituted a far more difficult 
pruhlem. Some were botza fidr political refugees of the 
traditional type, opponents of the party in power in 
their country, who had always claimed the right of 
asylum, which, particularly in Latin America. had 
usually been accorded them. Far more of those peace
time refugees, however , might be described as the .,.·ic
tims of propaganda. Certain major Powers were doing 
all they could to bring about the deiection of malcon
ten t.~ in countries the policies or whose governments 
they disliked. Although the p roblem "as not yet an 
urgent one, a time might come when such malcontent" 
and :1dve:1htrers might be o rganized into legions of 
spies or saboteurs or perhaps merely used as a form 
ol ach·crtiscment to cnco11rage fresh defectio.n. There 
was some doubt wlwthcr all such victims of propaganda 
should he classifi ed a~ bona fide political refugees, and 
it \\'Ould he asking- too much of the High Commissioner 
to require him to decide in each case. The voluntary 
organizations concerned with rei ugees \\'ould find stH.:h 

decisions even harder, as their activities were not 
planned and co-ord inated to anything like the same 
extent a s those of the H igh Commissioner's Office. 

27. Another circumstance giving rise to peacetime 
refugees was the partit ioning of countries such as Ger
many, Korea and Palestine, by armistice agreements 
and the like. Persons who crossed from one part of 
the country Lo another might or might not be bona fide 
political refugees. 
28. While t hose p roblems might in many cases not 
be of immediate concern to the H igh Commissioner, 
the U nited N ations should undoubtedly bear them in 
mind. The Powers concerned might well endeavour 
gradually to reduce the volume of propaganda likely 
to bring mo re refugees into being. He would have 
more to say on that subject when the Committee dis
cussed freedom of information. 
29. In the light of those considerations, he would 
appreciate an explanation of the way in which decisions 
of principle were reached by the H igh Commissioner 's 
Office and of the scope of the expression "perma nent 
solutions". T he problem of the IRO refugee5 might 
indeed be permanently settled, but he could not see 
how the expanding problem . of the new refugees he 
had descrihcd could be settled permanently. 

30. .:\1r. JOHNSON (United States of America) 
said that the people of the United States o( America 
were virtually all descendants of immigrants and 
therefore attentive to refugee problems, and the Gov
ernm ent and people of the United States had con
tributed altogether nearly $6,000 million for refugee 
aid. 
31. The United States delegation :1oted Nith satis
faction that the High Commissioner had continuert I'J 
co-operate with the organizations listed i11 chapter I , 
section 2, o( his report (A/2648) . It w.1:> essential 
that co-opera tion between the H igh Commissioner's 
Office and the Inter-Governmental Committee for Euro
pean Migration, which had stood the test of moving 
European refugees from S hanghai, should continue. 
The United S tates delegation was happy to note that 
that committee had assisted in t he settlement of 19,711 
refugees in 1953 and had made p r()vision for moving 
another 19,800 in 1954. 
32. The High Commissioner's report emphasized the 
importance of providing legal and poli tical protection 
for refugees. It was a heavy responsibility, which the 
High Commissioner had carried out conscientiously. 
Thanks to his efforts and those of va rious non-govern
mental org-anizations, many refugees had been resettled 
in new homes. But there was still much to be done. 
T here were s till displaced persons victims of the First 
World W ar to be aided, as well as the tens of thou
sands of victims of the Second W orld \Var. 

33. The United S tates concurred in the High Com
missioner's conviction that it was not enough to pro
vide emergency relief for the most desperate case;;. 
It was essential that permanent :iOlutions should rapid ly 
be fotmd for the other difficult cases, panicularly the 
88,000 refugees living in camps. 
34. The United States delegation endorsed, in prin
ciple, the H igh Commissioner 's \)rovosed \)t'Ogt'a.tnmc 

for those refugees. 
35. The United States felt that the estahlishmeut of 
two separate programmes and funds might lead to con
fusion, and therefore vroposed that the General Assem
bly should a uthorize the High Commissioner to estah-



16 Ce•eral Anembly-Niath Seeeion-Thil'd Committee 

lish a single combine<.! fund, which would be financed 
by voluntary contributions from Governments and 
private sources. The fund would be devoted primarily 
to the promotion of permanent solutions, but would 
also include assistance to the most needy cases. 
36. The United States felt strongly that United Na
tions financial assistance should be limited in time. 
Some problems would doubtless remain and the High 
Commissioner would continue to provide legal and 
political protection to refugees, but he should do every
thing in his power to promote permanent solutions 
within the next five years . The basic responsibility for 
refugees would continue to lie with the countries of 
asylum, and the High Commissioner should obtain 
their assurance thal they would assume full financial 
responsibility for any refugees still re<1uiring assistance 
after the five years. 
37. Careful consideration should be given to the 
financing and administration of such a programme. 
Only sixteen Governments, of which only twelve were 
Members of the United Nations, and the Holy See 
had contributed to the Refugee Emergency Fund. Any 
successful refugee programme had to have a wider 
range of financial support and be matched by adequate 
contributions from the countries of asylum. The As
sembly should also make provision, if it accepted the 

Printed in U.S.A. 

High Commissioner's proposals, for greater govern
mental participation in the planning and budgeting of 
the programme. Greater governmental authority could 
be achieved either by expanding the terms of reference 
of t he High Commissioner's Advisory Committee or 
by establishing a new executive committee representing 
the Governments primarily concerned in the fi nancing 
and administration of the combined programme. 

38. If a satisfactory solution were found to those 
problems, the United States Goven m1ent would ask 
Congress [or an appropriation cover ing its contribution 
to the programme. However, the United States delega
tion's general support for the programme should not 
be construed as a commitment to provide fu nds. The 
final decisjon would be influenced by the extent to 
which other Governments were prepared to make funds 
available, the extent to which the countries of residence 
co-operated in the financing and planning of the proj
ects, and the merits of the proj ects. 

39. The United States delegntion was :~n.xiotts that 
the refugees shot1ld find security and the opportunity 
for a normal life, and that the United Nations should 
do what it could within the next five years to assist 
the countries of residence in solving the problem. 

The meeting rose at 12.15 p.m. 

S-42051-November 195~1,850 




